
 

 
 

  
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Shirehall 
Abbey Foregate 
Shrewsbury 
SY2 6ND 

   
Date:   Tuesday, 22 April 2014 
: 

 
Committee:  
Young People's Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date: Wednesday, 30 April 2014 
Time: 11.30 am 
Venue: Shrewsbury Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 
6ND 
  
You are requested to attend the above meeting.  
The Agenda is attached 
 
 
Claire Porter 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services (Monitoring Officer) 
 
 
Members of the Committee 
Joyce Barrow (Chairman) 
Peggy Mullock (Vice Chairman) 
Hannah Fraser 
Heather Kidd 
Robert Macey 

Kevin Pardy 
Robert Tindall 
Kevin Turley 
David Turner 
Paul Wynn 

 
Co-opted Members (Voting): 
Austin Atkinson Diocese of Shrewsbury (RC) 
Paul Wignall Diocese of Hereford (CE) 
Dominic Wilson Parent Governor - Secondary Schools 
 
Co-opted Members (Non-Voting): 
Mark Hignett Voluntary and Community Sector 

Assembly 
 
Substitute Members: 
Charlotte Barnes 
Peter Cherrington 
David Evans 
Jane MacKenzie 

Stuart West 
Michael Wood 
Tina Woodward 
Roger Evans 

Public Document Pack



William Parr 
 
Substitute Co-opted Members (Voting): 
  
 
Your Committee Officer is:  
 
Tim Ward  Committee Officer 
Tel:   01743 252739 
Email:   tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk 



AGENDA 

 
1  Apologies and Substitutions  

 
To receive apologies for absence and notification of any substitute members 
 
 
 

2  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
Members are reminded they must not participate in the discussion or vote on 
any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave 
the room prior to the commencement of the debate. 
 
 

3  Minutes (Pages 1 - 8) 
 
The minutes of the last meeting, held on 26 March 2014, are attached for 
confirmation. 
 
 

4  Public Question Time  
 
To receive any questions, statements or petitions of which members of the 
public have given notice. 
 
Deadline for notification is: 25 April 2014 
 
 

5  Members' Question Time  
 
To receive any questions of which Members of the Council have given notice. 
 
Deadline for notification: 25 April 2014 
 
 

6  Changes to Youth Services  
 
To receive a presentation from the Area Commissioner on changes to the 
provision of Youth Services 
 
 

7  Universal Free School Meals (Pages 9 - 14) 
 

This report provides Young People’s Scrutiny with information relating to how 
the introduction of universal free school meals for all state funded infant school 
children (ie those in reception, year 1 and year 2) will impact on schools in 



Shropshire and the work being undertaken by Shire Services to ensure schools 
are prepared for the increase in meals served from September 2014. 

 
The report of the Shire Services Manager is attached 
 
 

8  Date of Next Meeting  
 
Members are reminded that the next meeting will be held on Wednesday 18 
June 2014 at The Shirehall at 10.00am 
 
 
 



 

 
 
YOUNG PEOPLE'S SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 26 March 2014 
10.00 am - 12.05 pm in the Shrewsbury/Oswestry Room, Shirehall, Abbey Foregate, 
Shrewsbury, Shropshire, SY2 6ND 
 
Responsible Officer:    Tim Ward 
Email:  tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk      Tel:  01743 252739 
 
Present  
Shropshire Councillors 
Councillor Joyce Barrow (Chairman) 
Councillors Peggy Mullock (Vice Chairman), Hannah Fraser, Robert Macey, Kevin Pardy, 
Kevin Turley, David Turner, Paul Wynn and Roger Evans (Substitute for Heather Kidd)  
 
Co-Opted Members (Voting) 
Austin Atkinson and Dominic Wilson 
 
 
35 Apologies and Substitutions  
 
35.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Heather Kidd (Councillor Roger 

Evans substituted), Mr J Carline and Mr M Hignett. 
 
35.2 The Chairman reported receipt of Mr Carline’s resignation as he was emigrating to 

Melbourne for work purposes.  
 
36 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  
 
36.1 None were disclosed. 

 
 
37 Minutes  
 
37.1 The minutes of the meeting held on 29 January 2014 had been circulated. 
 
37.2 Councillor Evans considered that Minute 31.6 was incomplete, and requested a more 

complete record detailing the reasons why second Child Protection Plans [CPPs] 
were put in place. 

 
37.3  It was agreed that the following revised wording should replace Minute 31.6:-  
 

Councillor Fraser asked why a child received a second CPP and whether it was for 
the same or different reasons.  She questioned whether, if it was for similar reasons 
as a previous CPP, the initial CPP was removed too early.  The Head of Children’s 
Safeguarding advised that there were a number of reasons for repeat CPPs and that 
this may be either a repeat of the original safeguarding concerns or different ones.  
Members noted that in some cases the re-referral reflected the awareness of 
agencies to the concerns in a family and, if having improved and been referred into 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Minutes of the Young People's Scrutiny Committee meeting  held on 26 March 2014 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 252739 2 

 

early help there was a relapse, then an early re–referral would be made back to 
social work services based on patterns of history.  The repeat CPP was not 
necessarily a negative issue as long as there was no lengthy period of CP 
registration in repeat scenarios as this would indicate delay. 

 
37.4 RESOLVED 
 
 That, subject to the above rewording of Minute 31.6 detailed above, the minutes of 

the Young People’s Scrutiny Committee meeting held on 29 January 2014 be 
approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 

 
 
38 Public Question Time  
 
38.1 There were no questions from members of the public 
 
 
39 Members' Question Time  
 
39.1 There were no questions from Members  
 
 
40 Care Leavers’ Pathway and Educational Achievement, Attendance and Health 

Outcomes of Shropshire's Looked After Children [LAC] 
 
40.1  Members considered the report from the Head of Children’s Safeguarding outlining 

national regulations and expectations for children looked after by the Local Authority 
as they moved into adult and independent life, and provided details of Shropshire’s 
developments. 

 
40.2  The 16 Plus Team Manager explained that the updated Regulations set out 

requirements for local authorities to introduce “staying put” policies to provide foster 
carers and young people with information and guidance on all aspects of extending 
placements beyond the young person’s 18th birthday; there was an expectation that 
25% of care leavers would “stay put”.  He added that local authorities had a duty to 
provide care and pathway planning for young people leaving care, and that the “My 
Independence Plan” booklet provided information on the need assessment and 
pathway plans for care leavers. 

 
40.3 The 16 Plus Team Manager explained that an Officer Task & Finish Group had been 

established to develop options for young people moving out of LA residential and 
foster care into supported and independent living accommodation.  Members noted 
the progress made to date to develop accommodation for care leavers in order to 
provide a step down from residential care, increase the range of options and enable 
successful transition to independent housing. 

 
40.4 A Care Leaver provided details of her experiences and explained that she had 

derived great benefit from being able to stay living long term with her foster carers. 
 

Page 2



Minutes of the Young People's Scrutiny Committee meeting  held on 26 March 2014 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 252739 3 

 

40.5 A Member queried the cost of different types of accommodation.  The 16 Plus Team 
Manager stated that costs ranged from £45,624 per annum for externally 
commissioned provision which was the most expensive, down to £12,567 for the 
Supported Housing Independence Project which was the cheapest. 

 
40.6 A Member queried the delay in producing the Independence Plan given that it was 

based on guidance provided in 2010.  The 16 Plus team Manager advised that the 
Plan replaced an earlier document which had been produced following receipt of the 
guidance, which was still current 

 
40.7 The Head of the Education and Health Team for LAC introduced the Education 

Achievement, Attendance and Health Outcomes Annual Report and drew Members’ 
attention to notable highlights which included: - 

 

• 21.4% of children achieving KS4 GCSE passes at A* - C including english 
and maths compared with the national average for LAC of 11% 

• 16 out of 17 LAC at KS2 making expected or better than expected progress 

• Improved attendance figures with only 4.7% of the cohort missing more than 
25 days education in the year 

• Improved 16 year destinations with only one young person from a cohort of 
18 being classified as NEET at the time of the report and subsequent to the 
report that young person was now engaged with County Training. 

 
40.8 Members congratulated Officers on the excellent results contained in the report and 

a Member noted her particular admiration for the team of Officers involved with 
adoption. 

 
40.9 RESOLVED 

 
i) That the progress being made to develop semi-independent and supported 

lodging care arrangements for 16/17 year olds, be noted;  
 

ii) That further updates on the impact of the new arrangements in meeting the 
Government’s vision, be received; and 
 

iii) That the Educational and Health achievements of Looked After Children, be 
noted. 

 
 
41 Closing the Gap in Educational Outcomes - 2013  
 
41.1 Members received the report from the Head of Education Improvement and 

Efficiency which outlined the actions taken and improvements in the outcomes for 
children entitled to free school meals (FSM). 

 
41.2 The Head of Education Improvement and Efficiency advised Members that in 2013 

the proportion of pupils eligible for free school meals (FSM) at Key Stage 2  gaining 
level 4+ in reading, writing and mathematics dropped from 62% to 59% but that the 
gap  in performance between those pupils entitled to FSM and their peers dropped 

Page 3



Minutes of the Young People's Scrutiny Committee meeting  held on 26 March 2014 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 252739 4 

 

from 23% to 19%.  She added that the picture at Key Stage 4, where the gap had 
been the greatest, had improved with almost 32% of pupils on FSM in Shropshire 
gaining five or more A*-C grades, including English and mathematics, compared to 
24%  in 2012.  The gap in performance between pupils entitled to FSM and their 
peers had reduced from 37% in 2012 to 31% in 2013. 

 
41.3 Members queried how pupils eligible for free school meals and the pupil premium 

would be indentified with the onset of universal free school meals for Reception and 
Years 1 and 2.  The Director of Children’s Services reminded Members that 
previously parents had to apply for FSM which automatically triggered the pupil 
premium.  She added that she was not aware how it would work under the new 
system, and was awaiting further information from the Department for Education. 

 
41.4  A Member commented that a great deal of emphasis was put on underperforming 

pupils but the most gifted pupils were often forgotten.  The Head of Education 
Improvement and Efficiency commented that a proportion of most gifted pupils 
received FSM and that it was important that the pupil premium was used to their 
benefit rather than being directed to the underperforming pupils 

 
41.5 The Chair thanked Officers for the steps they had taken to improve performance. 
 
41.6 RESOLVED 
 
 That the information detailed in the report be accepted. 

 
 
42 Transformation Activities - Early Help / COMPASS / Mental Health/Targeted 

Mental Health Support (TaMHS)  
 
42.1 Members considered the report from the Head of Children’s Safeguarding which 

provided information on the ongoing service redesign to review and develop the 
process, systems and services to deliver Early Help for Shropshire’s children and 
young people.   

 
42.2 Members were advised that the aim of the service redesign was to review and 

develop services which deliver Early Help, reduce bureaucracy and develop systems 
to ensure the provision of timely services. 

 
42.3 Lisa Wells from the Shropshire Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) informed the 

meeting that “Compass” a new single point of referral for parents and professionals 
had been set up.  It was noted that between 12 February and 5 March 2014 it had 
received 66 calls and the triage team had been able to make appropriate responses.  
She added that emergency referrals continued to be dealt with by the Child and 
Adolescent Mental Health Services [CAMHS] duty officer. 

 
42.4 Jo Robin explained that Officers from the local authority and the CCG had developed 

a comprehensive approach to CAMHS across a pathway covering the varying needs 
from tier 1 (lowest needs) to tier 3 (specialist intervention required).  She added that 
service redesign had taken place with new service specifications for tier 1 and tier 3 
services. 

Page 4



Minutes of the Young People's Scrutiny Committee meeting  held on 26 March 2014 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 252739 5 

 

 
42.5 Lisa Wells commented that there had been an increase in the incidence of self harm 

in young people and in response to this a “self harm pathway” had been developed in 
order to provide a consistent approach to early identification and support.  She added 
that the information, advice and guidance leaflets had proved to be a particularly 
useful resource for young people when supporting their friends who self harm. 

 
42.6 A Member asked how it was ensured that all young people with needs were 

identified, and commented that social media could be used to convey the message. 
Ms Robins commented that schools were ideally placed to identify and support pupils 
and that work was ongoing with GPs and Children’s Services to ensure that no one 
“fell through the net”.  It was noted that the provision of school nurses was being 
looked at as part of the overall review of School Health Services.  The Portfolio 
Holder for Children’s Services commented that the future role of school nurses would 
be very different from their traditional role and it was hoped that services could be 
expanded. 

 
42.7 A Member welcomed the development of the Self Harm Strategy.  In answer to a 

Member’s query, Ms Robins advised that it was too early to comment on its efficacy. 
 
42.8 A Member questioned the number of child social workers and whether there was a 

high staff turnover.  It was noted that retention of social workers and support staff 
was good. 

 
42.9 RESOLVED  
 

i) That the re-design and future plans for development of Early Help support 
services to children and families, be noted; and  

 
ii) That developments in mental health provision, be noted; and  

 
iii) That future reports be made to the Young People’s Scrutiny Committee to 

further Members’ understanding of the impact of the developments. 
 

 
43 Feedback from RAG on Looked After Children  
 
43.1  The Director of Children’s Services reminded Members that at the last meeting it had 

been agreed that a Rapid Action Group be established to look at aspects of Looked 
After Children and that following a scoping meeting Members had agreed to look at 
fostering and foster carers.  She stated that three meetings had been held, as 
follows: - 

  

• Meeting 1: Members looked at the scope of the RAG and how this would be 
achieved 

 

• Meeting 2 :  Members met with families who were involved in fostering to 
discuss their experiences and the challenges involved in fostering 

 

Page 5



Minutes of the Young People's Scrutiny Committee meeting  held on 26 March 2014 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 252739 6 

 

• Meeting 3 :  Members met with social workers involved in fostering to discuss 
the decision making process 

 
She advised Members that a fourth meeting would be held to consider the lessons 
learned so far and to identify any further work. 

 
43.2  A member of the RAG commented that the work provided a useful insight into the 

processes involved and highlighted the need to bridge the gap between foster carers 
and other agencies. 

 
43.3 The Chair advised that a further report would be presented to the Committee once 

the RAG had completed its work. 
 
44 Quarterly Performance Report  
 
44.1   The Committee received a report from the Director of Children’s Services which 

summarised the latest Quarter 3 Performance Indicators in relation to social care 
for children and young people. 

 
44.2 A Member asked why the number of referrals to children’s social care had risen and 

why the percentages of children with a second or subsequent child protection plan 
(CPP) had gone up.  With regard to the number of referrals to children’s social care, 
the Director of Children’s Services advised that the rise followed the national trend 
and that almost half of the referrals resulted in no further action. Several Members 
commented that it was positive that people felt able to make referrals even if they 
resulted in no further action.  With regard to the percentage of children with 2 or 
more CPPs, the Director of Children’s Services agreed to bring a report to a future 
meeting of the Committee. 

 
44.3 A Member asked why the target for the number of children placed more than 20 

miles from home had been exceeded in the second half of 2013.  The Director of 
Children’s Services commented that quite often children with specific requirements 
had to be placed out of county as there was no suitable provision for them within 
Shropshire.  She added that work was ongoing to improve the mix of places 
available within Shropshire. 

 
 
45 Scrutiny Work Programme  
 
45.1  The current Work Programme had been circulated.  The Chair reminded Members to 

advise her if they wished to suggest any topics for inclusion in the Committee’s Work 
Programme. 

 
 
46 Date of Next Meeting  
 
46.1  It was noted that the next meeting would be held at 11.30am on Wednesday 30 April 

2014.  
 
Signed  (Chairman) 

Page 6



Minutes of the Young People's Scrutiny Committee meeting  held on 26 March 2014 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 252739 7 

 

 

 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 

 

 Committee and Date 
 
Young People’s Scrutiny 
Committee 
 
30th April 2014 
 

 Item 
 

7 
Public 

 

 

 

Universal Infant Free School Meals (UIFSM) 

 

 

 

Responsible Officer Janet Croft, Shire Services Manager 

e-mail: Janet.croft@shropshire.gov.uk Tel: 01743 250258 Fax  01743 250251 

 

 

 

1.       Summary 

1.1 The Coalition Government has announced that, from September 2014, all 
state funded infant school children (ie those in reception, year 1 and year 2) 
will be eligible to receive a free school meal.  This applies to pupils in 
maintained schools, academies, free schools and pupil referral units.  It does 
not extend to pupils in maintained nursery schools.  Legislation will place a 
legal duty on schools to deliver this commitment (including powers to extend 
to additional year groups in the future).   

1.2 Capital funding of £150 million is available nationally in 2014-15 to upgrade 
kitchens and to increase dining capacity where required.  Transitional funding 
of £22.5 million is also being made available in 2014-15 to support small 
schools (ie schools with up to 150 pupils on roll) in addressing the particular 
challenges they will face.  Revenue funding of £1 billion will be made available 
in 2014/15 and 2015/16 academic years to provide a flat rate of £2.30 per 
meal taken based on actual take-up by newly eligible infant pupils. 

1.3 This report provides Young Persons Scrutiny with information relating to how 
this initiative will impact on schools in Shropshire and the work being 
undertaken by Shire Services to ensure schools are prepared for the increase 
in meals served from September 2014. 

 

2.        Recommendations 

2.1 To note the actions being taken and the issues which will face schools 
implementing this new provision in September 2014. 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



2 

 

REPORT 

 

3.        Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 

3.1 There is a risk that schools may not be in a position to deliver the UIFSM 
ready for September.  Shire Services are committed to ensuring that all the 
schools which they work with are in a position to fulfil this requirement. 

3.2 The capital funding that is available has provided an opportunity for schools in 
Shropshire to improve the kitchen and dining room facilities that they have by 
using this fund. 

            

4.        Financial Implications 

4.1 In the 2014/15 academic year schools will receive revenue funding at a flat 
rate of £2.30 for each meal taken by each newly eligible pupil.  Initial 
provisional allocations will be based on an estimate of national take-up and 
then adjusted once the Department for Education has details of the actual 
number of meals taken by individual schools.  Schools will be notified in June 
2014 of their provisional full year revenue funding allocation for the 2014/15 
academic year.  Local authorities will receive the funding for the autumn 2014 
and spring 2015 terms around the same time.  The allocations will be based 
on an 87% take-up by newly eligible pupils.  Payments for the summer term 
2015 will be adjusted to take into account actual take-up. 

4.2 Capital funding of £150 million in the 2014-15 financial year has been 
allocated to local authorities to support the roll out of UIFSM.  For Shropshire 
this equates to £662,822. 

4.3 At a meeting on the 20th March 2014 the Schools Forum considered and 
agreed the basis for the distribution of the UIFSM capital grant to eligible 
schools in Shropshire.  

4.4 Additional one-off funding from a national allocation of £22.5 million will also 
be provided for small schools - those with up to 150 pupils on roll – to help 
with transitional costs.  A total of 79 Shropshire schools (62.7%) will qualify for 
this additional funding, equating to £390,000, the formulae for distributing this 
funding has been dictated by the Government, and ensures a minimum of 
£3,000 per school. 

4.5 The capital funding can only be used for capital expenditure related to the 
implementation of the UIFSM.  Any underspends in the funding could 
potentially be clawed back for recirculation to other schools in need. 

 

5.        Background 

5.1 The School Food Plan (www.schoolfoodplan.com ) presented evidence that 
the introduction of universal free school meals will lead to positive 
improvements in health, attainment and social cohesion, and help families with 
the cost of living.  Evidence from pilot projects indicates universal free school 
meals have significant benefits for individual children and for the broader life of 
the school. 

Page 10



3 

 

5.2 The Children and Families Bill places a legal duty on state-funded schools in 
England, including academies and free schools, to offer a free school lunch to 
all pupils in reception, year 1 and year 2.  Existing entitlements to free school 
meals (FSM) for disadvantaged pupils in nursery classes and at key stages 2-
4 will continue, based on existing FSM eligibility criteria.  Royal Assent was 
received on 13 March 2014, meaning that the new duty on schools will come 
into force from September 2014. 

5.3 The Bill does not change the current position for children who are registered in 
a nursery class of a maintained school, or in a maintained nursery school.  
They will continue to receive a free school meal if they meet the existing 
eligibility criteria and they are in receipt of full-time education or education both 
before and after the lunch period. 

5.4 Targeted advice and support will be provided to schools and local authorities 
through the UIFSM implementation support service.  Shire Services is 
currently in discussion with the service providers to ascertain the support that 
could be available to schools in Shropshire to assist with this process. 

 

 

6.        Operational Considerations 

6.1 Shire Services currently provides catering services to 112 Primary schools in 
Shropshire (87%), which includes 2 Academy schools. 

6.2 Across these schools it is anticipated that there will be an increase of 3,192 
meals served per day, taking the daily number of meals in Shropshire primary 
schools to 11,138 an increase of 40%. 

6.3 Shire Services provides a school meals service to 3 Infants schools 
(Woodfield, Ludlow and Sundorne) which will see a significant increase in the 
number of meals provided with all pupils eligible for a free school meal from 
September. 

6.4 The Area Team for Shire Services have been gathering information from all 
primary schools, to contribute to a plan which will identify the requirements for 
schools from September. 

6.5 This work has involved talking to head teachers and kitchen staff, as well as a 
review of the kitchen equipment, the capacity of the hall and the lunchtime 
arrangements. 

6.6 The following areas have been reviewed:- 

Ø  The anticipated increase in the number of meals 

Ø  The number of staff and hours worked in the kitchen 

Ø  The size and condition of the fabric of the kitchen 

Ø  The capacity and condition of the kitchen equipment 

Ø  The size of the hall or dining room where pupils eat 

Ø  The capacity and condition of the serving trolleys and dining room 
furniture 

Ø  The need for additional light equipment to support the service such as 
pans, plates and cutlery 

Page 11



4 

 

Ø  The lunchtime arrangements with regard to queuing and cash collection 

Ø  The length of the lunch break 

Ø  The current arrangements for pupils who bring a packed lunch 

Ø  The meals provided to other schools and what impact these additional 
meals will have 

Ø  The menu currently being served in the school 

Ø  Any concerns of the head teacher 

6.7 Each school has different needs and will have different requirements in order 
to implement this change. In 16 schools, where they already have a good level 
of uptake of meals in KS1, there are less than 10 meals per day extra to be 
produced in September, as a result there is very little support that this group of 
schools will need to implement the new requirement. 

6.8 The largest increase in the number of meals being produced is 124 per day.  
To manage this there will be a need for additional equipment in the kitchen, 
additional serving trolleys and new staff to be recruited and trained ready for 
September.  This school has also been allocated additional support from the 
Area Team who will be working in the school for the first couple of weeks in 
September to support the kitchen staff and to ensure that the service is 
operating smoothly. 

6.9 A review of the arrangements at lunchtime was needed to ascertain that the 
length of the lunch break would be adequate to cope with the increased 
number of pupils eating.  In the vast majority of schools the pupils eating a 
packed lunch currently share the dining room or hall with pupils eating a hot 
meal.  Whilst seating may not be an issue, it will be important to ensure that 
the pupils are served quickly to avoid delays at the end of the service to avoid 
potentially impacting on curriculum time. 

6.10 There are 21 schools who provide an exported meal to a nearby school which 
does not have a kitchen.  This presents additional issues to be addressed.  
For example Cleobury Mortimer Primary currently exports meals to 3 other 
primary schools.  In September all 4 schools will see an increase in the 
number of meals required as a result of the UIFSM.  The kitchen will have a 
total increase of 79 meals, made up of 48 meals at Cleobury and a total of 31 
meals at the other 3 schools. 

6.11 After Easter the Area Team will be meeting with schools individually to advise 
them of any issues which need to be addressed prior to September and to 
make recommendations as to how, in our opinion, the capital funding should 
be spent. 

6.12 Some schools have already placed orders for additional equipment that they 
wish to purchase.  There is some concern that as this is a national initiative; 
suppliers may struggle to meet the usual delivery timescales due to the 
increased volume of orders.  Whilst we are seeing a longer lead in time for 
delivery and installation of equipment we have not had an indication that 
orders will not be fulfilled ready for September. 

6.13 Shire Services are committed to supporting schools to ensure that they the 
requirements of additional meals from September can be met with minimal 
detriment to the school as a whole. 

Page 12



5 

 

 

 

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

Universal Infant Free School Meals Report 

Schools Forum, 20th March 2014, Prepared by Phil Wilson 

Cabinet Member (Portfolio Holder) 
Ann Hartley 

Local Member 
N/A 

Appendices 
None 

 

 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 Universal Free School Meals

